Annex B

Progress of Restoration and Maintenance Projects undertaken by the Antiquities and Monuments Office

(Progress as at 15 May 2025)

Projects in preparation stage

Item . Historical Background of
No. Works Project the Concerned Building Scope of Works Progress
1. |St. John’s Cathedral |Builtin 1849, St. John’s Cathedral is the Roof and timber truss Tender was issued and closed

(B &y gy B H),
Central

oldest surviving Western Christian
ecclesiastical building in Hong Kong.
The building was declared a monument
in 1996.

survey at the Choir and
Aisles of the Cathedral

in May 2025.

Kowloon Union

Church (J1BE {6 28
&), Yau Ma Tei

Kowloon Union Church at Jordan Road,
built by the London Missionary Society
(f FfH 28 =), was opened in 1931.
The building was declared a monument
in 2017.

Repair of wrought-iron
windows, re-roofing and
repair of flat roof ceiling
at Conference Room

Tender was issued and closed
in May 2025.

Tung Lin Kok Yuen
(PR#EA251), Happy
Valley

Tung Lin Kok Yuen is a Buddhist
monastery and was founded in 1935 by

Lady Clara Ho Tung (fa[5EAEZ/E 1)
and her husband Sir Robert Ho Tung ({a]

HES1). The building was declared a
monument in 2017.

Roof re-tiling and repair
of roof eaves at Zone B
(except Entrance Porch)

Tender
progress.

preparation is in
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4. |Residence of Tang |The Residence of Tang Pak Kau was |® Roof re-tiling and repair |® Tender preparation is in
Pak Kau (Z[{H3E#z |probably built in the early 20 century. works to Study Hall and progress.
), Kam Tin ($% 1), (Tang Pak Kau was a distinguished adjacent Store Room
Yuen Long member of the Tang clan in Kam
Tin. The residence is a rectangular-
shaped single-storey grey brick building
with a three-storey watchtower. The
building was declared a monument in
2024.
1. Projects with works in progress
Iltlegq Works Project I:gg;fgﬁggg%ﬁﬁg?ngf Scope of Works Progress
1. |[Man Lun Fung |The Man Lun Fung Ancestral Hall was Structural strengthening (® Works commenced in
Ancestral Hall (2 |built around the middle of the 17t works to columns and November 2023 and are

4N f8), San Tin
(¥ FH), Yuen Long

century and it comprises three halls with
two enclosed courtyards between them.
The building was also used as the office
of the village patrol forces and as a
school for clansmen in the past. The
building was declared a monument in
1983.

the
left

wall footing at
Middle Hall and
sheltered corridor
Brick wall repair

expected to be completed in
the 2" quarter of 2025.
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Il’iley Works Project Té?cgé%ageﬁsgggéﬁﬁg?ngf Scope of Works Progress

2. |Entrance Tower and |Lo Wai is a village enclosed by brick Structural survey and Services commenced in June
Enclosing Walls of |walls on all four sides, and was the structural remedial 2024 and are expected to be
Lo Wai (GZ &8 5 |earliest walled village among the five proposal completed in the 2" quarter of

fi% ), Lung Yeuk

Tau (HE B BH ),
Fanling

renowned walled villages in Lung Yeuk
Tau, Fanling. The entrance tower and
enclosing walls of Lo Wai were declared
monuments in 1997.

2025.

Hip Tin Temple ({7
K=), Shan Tsui (LL
nH), Sha Tau Kok

Hip Tin Temple in Shan Tsui, Sha Tau
Kok, was rebuilt between 1894 and 1895
to replace an earlier temple dedicated for
the deity Kwan Tai (8 7F) (God of
Martial Arts). The temple served as a
place to deliver religious, communal and
educational functions for the local
community in the 20" century and was
used as the premises of a village school
named Fuk Tak Study Hall ({£/EFLZ%).
The building was declared a monument
in 2021.

Dismantling of later-
added partitions, doors
and fixtures

Repair of internal walls
plaster, metal windows,

Works commenced in June
2024 and are expected to be
completed in the 3" quarter of
2025.

Kun Lung Wai (&
FE [E ), Lung Yeuk
Tau, Fanling

Kun Lung Wai, presently known as San
Wai (i [& ), is believed to be built in
1744. lts enclosing walls and corner
towers were declared monuments in
1993.

timber elements and
floor

Repair of north side
enclosing wall

Works commenced in August
2024 and are expected to be
completed in the 4™ quarter of
2025.
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5. |The Main Building | The Helena May Institute (renamed as |® Re-roofing of flat roof at Works commenced in August
of The Helena May [The Helena May in 1974) was Main Building, 2024 and are expected to be
(1 & A #7 2 &), |established in 1916 by Lady May, wife repainting and repair of completed in the 2" quarter of
Central of the then Governor Sir Henry east and north elevations 2025.
May. The exterior of the Main
Building was declared a monument in
1993.
6. |Morrison  Building |Morrison Building was originally part |® Repair of electrical, Works commenced in
(& 18 #& f#), Hoh |of a villa built in 1936 by General Cai plumbing and drainage September 2024 and are
Fuk Tong Centre (fa] | Tingkai (£27E#%) (1892-1968) of the system to the main expected to be completed in
8 4% @ f7 ), Tuen |Nineteenth Route Army (+FLERE), a building the 3" quarter of 2025.
Mun force renowned for its brave resistance
against the Japanese invasion. The
building was used for tertiary education
by the Dade Institute (Z£{ZEE2[5%) from
1946 to 1949. The building was
declared a monument in 2004.
7. |Cheung Shan |Situated at Miu Keng (EfAf%) in Wo Keng |®  Survey and repair of roof Works ~ commenced  in

Monastery (£ Ll
), Ping Che (#F
% ), Fanling

Shan (K#X11]), Cheung Shan Monastery
was formerly called Cheung Sang
Nunnery (£ 4: ), and was probably
constructed in 1789. Since Miu Keng
was the halfway point on the route to
Shenzhen via Sha Tau Kok in the past, the
temple was once a rest stop for travellers,

at Main Hall, Side Hall
and Entrance Hall

December 2024 and are
expected to be completed in
the 2" quarter of 2025.
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Il’iley Works Project Tétgé%age?sgggéﬁﬁg?ngf Scope of Works Progress
providing services including free tea.
The building was declared a monument
in 1998.
8. |Fat Tat Tong (2% 7 |Fat Tat Tong, builtin 1933 by Li To Wan |Phase 1I Works commenced in
%), Ha Wo Hang |Tso (%= 7 ¥2 tH ) in Ha Wo Hang, isnot (®  Re-roofing and December 2024 and are

('R K Bt), Sha Tau
Kok

only a testimony of the history of a
renowned Hakka (% 5¢) family in the
area, but also a typical example of
residences of eclectic style popular with
the overseas Chinese returned to Hong
Kong in the early 20" century. The
building was declared a monument in
2013.

refurbishment works to
Houses 1 and 2

expected to be completed in
the 4™ quarter of 2025.

Lo Pan Temple (&

BES:ATER), Kennedy

Town

Lo Pan Temple was first built in 1884
and rebuilt at the same site in 1928.
The temple was embellished with
intricate murals ( B¢ = ), plaster
mouldings (JX#H), wood carvings (K
[ ) and pottery decorations ([ ¥8).
Local construction sector has been
following the tradition of paying
homage to Lo Pan at the temple on his
birthday. The building was declared a
monument in 2024.

® Repair of gable ridge,
ceramic figurines and
roof tiles at Entrance
Hall and Side Room

Works commenced in April
2025 and are expected to be
completed in the 2" quarter of
2025.




Projects recently completed
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Iltleorh Works Project Té?cgé%ageﬁsgggéﬁﬁg?ngf Scope of Works Progress
1. |Hau Ku  Shek |Hau Ku Shek Ancestral Hall in Ho Repair of roof and ([® Works commenced in
Ancestral Hall ( j& |Sheung Heung was builtin the late Ming timber  window  at September 2024 and were
& 4 fd ), Ho |dynasty (1368-1644) to commemorate Entrance Hall and Rear completed in February 2025.
Sheung Heung (a7 |Hau Ku]-csr;]ekl,_I th:a 17_t|'_‘hgetr)1e_ria(§!on Hall
. |ancestor of the Hau clan. e building
£ %), Sheung Shui was declared a monument in 2003.
2. |Yan Tun Kong Study |Yan Tun Kong Study Hall, also known Repair of brick wallsand |® Works commenced in July
Hall ({2 RZE =), |as Yin Yik Tong (G#Z2E5), was built to timber elements 2024 and were completed in
Ping Shan (5% (11), |educate clan youngsters in preparation March 2025.
Yuen Long for the Imperial Civil Service
Examinations ( f} 22 % &{). Apart
from teaching purposes, Yan Tun Kong
Study Hall serves as an ancestral hall of
the Tang clan. The year of
construction is uncertain. The
building was declared a monument in
2009.
3. |Yi Tai Study Hall |Yi Tai Study Hall was erected by a group Repair of timber purlins (® Works commenced in

(=7 & Bbt) and
Tang Kwong U
Ancestral Hall ( &

gy 8 2 fd ), Kam

of 16 local scholar-gentry from Tang Yi
Tai Wui ( 8 — 7 & ) during the
Daoguang (#& 5t:) reign (1821-1850) of
Qing dynasty for the worship of Man

and timber elements

Repair  of  external
plaster  friezes and
inscriptions

September 2024 and were

completed in April 2025.




Annex B

ltem
No.

Works Project

Historical Background of
the Concerned Building

Scope of Works

Progress

Tin, Yuen Long

Cheong (32 &%) (God of Literature)
and Kwan Tai.  The study hall is a two-
hall rectangular building, built of grey
bricks and rammed earth. The
building was declared a monument in
1992.

Tang Kwong U Ancestral Hall is an
example of Qing vernacular architecture
with a two-hall, three-bay and one-
courtyard layout, built in the 40" year of
the Kangxi (5% EE) reign (1701) during
the Qing dynasty. The building was
declared a monument in 2010.

Tung Lin Kok Yuen,
Happy Valley

Tung Lin Kok Yuen is a Buddhist
monastery and was founded in 1935 by
Lady Clara Ho Tung and her husband
Sir Robert Ho Tung.  The building was
declared a monument in 2017.

Repair of internal walls
and ceilings at rear part
of Main Hall

Repair of roof eaves near
Entrance

Works commenced in August
2024 and were completed in
March 2025.

Liu Man Shek Tong
Ancestral Hall (&
B 4 = ), Sheung
Shui

Built by the Liu clan in the 16" year of
Qianlong (5% [% ) reign (1751) of Qing
dynasty, Liu Man Shek Tong Ancestral
Hall is a typical three-hall two-
courtyard building. The building was
declared a monument in 1985.

Repainting of internal
and external walls of
Middle Hall

Works commenced in October
2024 and were completed in
April 2025.






